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MHT EASEMENTS ON TIIE WILSON'S MIIL CCK>LEX 

1. HA-392 Wilson's Mill Tenant House 

2. HA-25 Wilson's Mill Miller's House 

3. HA-10 Wilson's Mill House (Main House) 

4. HA-11 Wilson Mill 



HA-11 

Wilson'E= Mill 
702 Darlington Road 
Darlington vicinity 
Private 

c. 1800 

Wilson's Mill is the most important b·.iilding in the Wilson's Mill complex, 
one of +-he oldest ,qnd most complete mill ;:::;roups on Deer Creek. Mills such 
as this were important factors in the settlement of the area and the growth 
of in~ustry in the county. Possibly built as early as 1760, the stone 
structure has the dates 1810, 1825, and 1845 carved into its walls and rafters. 
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Telephone #: (215) 667-3505 

STATE , 

PA 

Liber #: 1143 
Folio f:: 73 

STATE 

MD 

zip cod.e 
19004 

Maryland Historical Trust Historic Sites Inventory 
DATE 

c. 1970 
DEPOSITORY FOR 

SURVEY RECORDS 

CITY. TOWN 

Mnryland Historical Trust 

L\.nnapolis 

_FEDERAL .:{.STATE _COUNTY _LOCAL 
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II DESCRIPTION 

_EXCELLENT 

:f-GOOD 

_FAIR 

CONDITION 

_DETERIORATED 

_RUINS 

_ UNEXPOSED 

CHECK ONE 

_UNALTERED 

;{--ALTERED 

CHECK ONE 

*ORIGINAL SITE 

_MOVED DATE ___ _ 

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT ANO ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE 

\/ilson 1 s Mill is a two-and-a-half story stone industrial building dating 
from the early 19th century and located on the north bank of Deer Creek just 
west of ~he Darlington Road (MD 161) bridge in Harford County, Maryland. 
The millrace runs from the west to the mill, turning to parallel the west 
wall of the building and ru:rtning back to the Creek. 

The mill was built of uncoursed rubble stone with large quoins a~d a 
slate gable roof. The unner ~ortion of the gables is frame with horizontal 
siding. On the west gable is a clock face; the clock (installation date 
unknown) is not presently operating, but is run by a weight and pulley system 
inside the mill. A board and batten frame shed was added to the northwest 
side of the stone block at an unknown date. The stone walls are stabilized 
by iron tie rods finished on the exterior in rosettes and ogee curves. 
',vindows and doors are functionally placed in an irregular pattern. Most 
are six-over-six sash. The main entrance in the north elevation is a Dutch 
door with tongue and groove planks. 

The interior of the mill retains itG hand-hewn structural beams. The 
shed contains the miller's office with the original desk and chair. The 
gristmill machinery was removed and stored in the third floor loft in 1931. 
A water-powered electrical generator was installed and remains in place, 
but is no longer used. The current owner plans to restore the generator 
and return it to operation. 

The mill darn and the head of the mill race are located about one-quarter 
mile upstream. The darn was rebuilt in 1932 by :!"rancis J. Stokes, then 
owner of the mill property. 

The ~.aryland ~istorical Trust obtained a perpetual easement in 1976 on 
~he exterior of all buildings, the interior of the mill, and its machinery. 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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local history 

'viilson' s Mill is the most important building in the dilson' s Mill complex, 
one of the oldest and most complete mill groups on Deer Creek. Mills such 
as this were important factors in the siettlement of the area and the growth 
of industry in the county. 

HISTORY AND SUPPORT 

Wilson's !Iill stands on the tract 11Parker's Chance" acquired in 1743 
by Nathan Rigbie; his will mentions a m:~ll1and dam in 1783. One source 
states the present mill was built in 17b0. The mill does not appear on the 
1795 map of Harford County. It passed -::;o Joseph Brinton in 1802, to Reuben 
Stump in 1821, to Rachel Price in 1856, and into the Hilson family through 
her second husband, William Wilson, and thence to their son, David Wilson. 
in 1866. Wilson's Mill appears near the D.E. Wilson house on the 1858 
Jennings and Herrick map. 

The 1880 census listed David E. Wilson's custom mill worth $6000 with 
five employees, three run of stones, and 500 bu/diem maximum. A 10-foot fall 
on Deer Creek drove a 25 hp, 3-foot turbine at 120 rpm. Its output was 
250 bbl flour, 26 tons meal, 9.7 tons foed, and 1 ton hominy ($3000). The 
sawmill, worth $1000, h8-d two employees and one each circular and Muley saws. 
'!'he same fall on Deer Creek drove a 30 hp, 3-foot turbine at 200 rpm to cut 
200,000 ft. ($4000). The mill is also :cisted under Glenville in the 1887 
state directory. 

D. Gilpin Wilson operated the mill from 1903 to 1931. Mr. and Mrs. 
Francis J. Stokes acquired the mill in =~931 and used it to house an elec­
trical generator for the estate. In sp:~ te of its claims to age, the date 
1810 is-chiseled into the wall. A stone in the exterior north elevation 
bears the date 1845 and an interior rafter has an 1825 date. 

1 
Harford County Directory, 1953, p. 31~). 

For further information on the ':/ilson' s Nill complex, see Wilson's Mill House 
(HA-10), · Iilson' s l·~ill Miller's House (aA-25), and Wilson's Mill Tenant House 
(HA-392). 

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY 
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HA-11 
Wilson 1 s Mill 

CONTINUATION SHEET 

8. Significance (continued) 

Samuel Mason, in Historical Sketches of Harford County, Maryland, gives 
the carved inscriptions on Wilson 1 s Mill as: "S.B. Silver, 1817; E.R., 1822; 
and C.R. Smith, 1837". C.R. Smith was the miller in 1837 under the ownership 
of Reuben Stump. 

~~illiam Stump Forwood, in his "Homes on Deer Creek" series in the Aegis­
Intelligencer in 1879-80, referred to ~~ilson 1 s Mill as "anciently called 
Alfred Mills". The source of this name is unknown. 

The main route between Darlington, Glenville, and Harmony Church ran along 
the present access road between the Mill and the Mill House on the hill. 
According to Mason 1 s book, the original covered bridge crossing the Deer Creek 
stood opposite the Miller's House and was washed away in a freshet in 1865. 
The second covered bridge was built at another location east of the present 
bridge. (See HA-393 and 394.) 
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Wilson's Mill HA-11 
Harford County, Maryland 
Photo : Janet Davis 
September 1982 
Vi ew from north 
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Wilson's Mill HA-11 
Harford County, Maryland 
Photo: Janet Davis 
September 1982 
Sluice gate, view from south 
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